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May 28, 2020 
 
Barton W. Smith, Esq. 
Smith Hawks 
138 Simonton Street 
Key West, Florida  33040 
 
Re: Safe Harbor – Stock Island, Florida 
 Parking Statement – Update 
 
Dear Bart: 
 
As requested, KBP Consulting, Inc. has prepared a parking statement associated with the proposed 
development of the Safe Harbor Marina located on Stock Island in Monroe County, Florida.  This 
statement addresses the parking requirements according to County Code and those associated with 
industry standards. 
 
Residential 
According to the Monroe County Land Development Code, Chapter 114, Sec. 114-67. Required 
Off-Street Parking, multifamily residential developments are required to provide two (2) parking 
spaces for each one- and two-bedroom dwelling unit and three (3) parking spaces for each three- 
(or more) bedroom dwelling unit.  It is generally understood and acknowledged that these 
requirements result in an over-supply of parking within multifamily residential communities.  This 
is especially true in the Lower Keys where alternative modes of transportation (i.e. walking, 
bicycles, scooters, transit, etc.) are quite common and generally preferred. 
 
Based upon our experience and research at numerous multifamily residential communities 
throughout south Florida, it is evident that an overall parking rate of 1.5 parking spaces per 
dwelling unit is typically adequate to meet demand.  This rate is further supported by data 
published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers in their manual entitled Parking Generation, 
5th Edition.  For the Multifamily Housing land use, the average peak period parking demand is as 
follows:  
 

• Low-Rise: 1.31 parked vehicles / dwelling unit (on a Saturday) 
• Mid-Rise: 1.31 parked vehicles / dwelling unit (on a weekday – Monday thru Friday) 

 
Please see Attachment A for the relevant excerpts from this publication. 
 
Marina 
According to the Monroe County Land Development Code, Chapter 114, Sec. 114-67. Required 
Off-Street Parking, live-aboard boats are required to provide 1.5 parking spaces per berth, wet 
berths are required to provide one (1) parking space each, and one (1) parking space is required per 
four (4) dry boat storage spaces.  Historically, this has resulted in an over-supply of parking at 
most marinas in the Keys. 
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The previously referenced Parking Generation Manual indicates that marinas have a peak 
(Sunday) demand of 0.59 vehicles (occupied parking spaces) per wet berth.  Please see 
Attachment B for the relevant excerpts from the Parking Generation Manual.  Concerning the dry 
boat storage spaces, research conducted by others in the Keys (and refenced in Monroe County 
traffic impact studies for more than 20 years) indicates that dry boat storage spaces generate 
approximately one-half of the vehicular traffic of a wet berth.  Therefore, the corresponding 
parking rate should be one-half, or approximately 0.30 parking spaces per berth. 
 
If you have any questions or require additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
KBP CONSULTING, INC. 

 
Karl B. Peterson, P.E. 
Florida Registration Number 49897 
Engineering Business Number 29939 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A 
 

ITE Parking Generation Manual (5th Edition) 
 

Multifamily Housing (Low-Rise and Mid-Rise) 
Parking Generation Data 



















 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment B 
 

ITE Parking Generation Manual (5th Edition) 
 

Marina 
Parking Generation Data 

 










